INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qpinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Niga Publishers and Printers Privale
Limited (*the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policics and other cxplanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the cxplanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS fwancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so requived and give a trae and fair view n conformity with the accounting principles
generally aceepted in India, of the state of atfairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equily for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS (mancial statements i accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{SAs), as specified under scction 43(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under (hosc Slandards arc further
deseribed in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Finaneial Statements” scetion of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute
of Chartercd Accountants of India together with the cthical requirements that are velevant to our audit of the
(nancial statcments under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thercunder, and we have fulfilled our other
cthical responsibilitics in accordance with these requircments and the Code of Ethics. We belicve that the
audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our audil opinion on the
Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the other imformation. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board of Directors Report, bul docs not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statcments does not cover the other information and we do 110t express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conncction with our awdit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to rcad the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained 1n the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,
The Board of Directors Reporl 1s not made availahle to us as al the date of this auditor's report. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Manapement for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors s responsible for the matters stated in scetion 134(5) of the Act with

respect (o the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and changes in equity of
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the Conmpany iy accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepled in India, including the [Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under scction 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting rccords in accordance with the provisions of the Acl for saleguarding olthe assets of the Company
and for preventing and dcetecting frauds and other trregularitics; sclection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and cstimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementatton and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for
cnsuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting rccords, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a truc and fair view and arc free from material
misslatement, whether due to fraud ov crror,

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related (o going concern and using the going
concarn basis of accounting unless management cither intends to hiquidate the Company or o ccase
operations, or ltas no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Dircctors arc also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Finaneial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial stalcments as a whole
ar¢ free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that
meludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can arise from fraud or avor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the ceonomie decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
{inancial stalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we cxcreise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

< Identify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or crror, design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nor detecting a
malerial misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
mnvelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ol the override ol internal control.

%+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate miternal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

% Bvaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estinmates
and related disclosurcs made by management.

% Conclude on the appropriateness ol management’s usc of the going concern basis of accounting and,
bascd on the audit evidcuee obilained, whether a material uncertainty cxists related to cvents or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to ¢ontinuc as a going concern, I
we conclude that a material uncertainty cxists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the refated disclosures in the tinancial statemeats or, 1f such disclosurcs are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are bascd on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, luturc events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to conlinue as a going concern.
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»+ [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, inciuding the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
cventy in a manncr that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencics in imtemal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2006 (“the Order™). 1ssued by the Central

Govermment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 1n the “Annexure 17
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

I~

Asrequired by Scction 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations whicl to the best of our knowledge
and belhief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Shect, the Statement ol Profit and Loss including the Stalement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Lquity dealt with by
this. Report are in agreement with the books of aceount;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statcinenis comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended:

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 18 disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in termns of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with refercnce to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating cffectiveness of such
conirols, refer to our separate Report in “Anncxure 2 to this report;

2)  According to the information and explanation given by the management, we rcport that remuneration
of the Managing Director for the year ended March 31, 2019 is in excess of the limits applicable
under section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thercto, by Rg [.2 million. We are informed by
the management that 1t is in the process ol recovering the excess amouni from the director;

hy With respeet to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Ceinpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the cxplanations given Lo us:
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1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statcments — Refer Note 32 1o the Ind AS financial statements;

1. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any matcrial foresecable losscs;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required (o be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartcred Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: [01049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941

Placc of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 27,2019
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Aunnexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Re: Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited (‘the Company’)

(N {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

{c) According to the information and cxplanations gtven by the management, there are 1o
irunovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly,
the requirements under paragraph 3(1){¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The managerment has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable interval during
the ycar and no matertal discrepancics noted on such verification.

(i) (a) The Company has granted loans to two firms covered in the register mainiained under scction
189 of the Companies Act. 2013, In our opinton and according Lo the information and explanations
given lo us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company's
interest.

{b) The Company has granted loans to a {irm covered in the register maintained under seetion 189
of the Companies Act, 2013, The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular,

(¢ ) Therc arc no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under scetion 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 whicly are overdue for more than nincty
days.

(iv) In our epinton and according (o the information and cxplanations given to us, theve arc no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securitics given in respact of which provisions of section [85 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upen.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposils within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Dcposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. the
provisions of clause 3(v} of the Order arc not applicable.

{(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Governinent has not specified the
maintenance of cost rccords under clause 148(1) of (he Companics Act 2013, for the
producl/services of the Company.

{(vii} {a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory ducs
ineluding provident fund, cinployces’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, scrvice tax, duly of
custom, duty of excise, valuc added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it.



{viii)

(ix)

{x)

(xi)

{b) According to the information and cxplanations given to us, undisputcd ducs in respect of
providenl fund, cmployces’ state insurance, incoine-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom,
duty ol ¢cxcise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year cnd, tor a period of more than six months [rom the date they became
payable, arc as follows:

Name of Naturc of Amount Period to which Due Date Remarks
the the Ducs {Rs.) the amount
Statute relates
Payment Bonus 768.862 FY 14-15-and : Within § Rs. 335,559/-
of Bonus Y 15-16 months from | paid on May
Act’1965 the date the | 14,2019,
close of
accounting
year

{(c) According lo the information and cxplanations given to us, the ducs oulstanding of income tax
on account of any disputc are as follows:

Name of the MNature ot the Aimount Period to which | Forum where dispute is
Statute Ducs {Rs.) the amount relatcs | pending

Income Tax Income-Tax 39.472.967 AY 2011-12 ITAT
Act, 196]

Income Tax - Income Tax 315,438.380 AY 2012-13 ITAT
Acl. 1961

L__ . i ]

In our opinion and according (o the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank.
The Company does not have any dues to in respeet of debenture holders or government,

According to the information and explanations given by the manageinent, the Company has not
raised any moncy way of initial public offer / further public ofter / debt instruments and term loans
hence, reporting under clausc {ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and Fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
managenient, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

According to the information and explanation given by the management, we report (hat
remuneration of the Managing Director (or the year ended March 31, 2019 is in excess of the limits
applicable under sectton 197 of the Act, rcad with Schedule V thercto, by Rs 1.2 million. We are
informed by the management that it proposes to obtain approval ol the sharecholders 1 a general



{xi1)

{xiii)

(x1v)

)

{xvi)

meeling by way of a special resolution. We arc informed by the management that it 1s in the process
of rceovering the excess amount [rom the director.

In our opinien, the Company is not a nidhi company. Thercfore, the provisions of clausc 3(xi1) of
the order are not applicable to the Compauny and hence nol commented upon.

According to the information and cxplanations given by the management, (ransactions with the
related parties are in compliance with scction 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes (o the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

According Lo the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not madc any prelerential allotment or private placement of sharcs
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) arc not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has nol
entered mto any non-cash transactions with dircctors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of scction 45-1A of the
Rescerve Bank of India Act, 1934 arc not applicable to the Company.

For S8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Meimbership Number: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Dale: May 27, 2019
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NIRJA PUBLISHERS AND PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Seetion 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal [inancial controls over financial reporting of Nigja Publishers and Printers
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statcments of the Company for the year ended on that datce,

Management’s Responsibility for Interna] Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls bascd
on the intcrnal control over inancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the cssential
compouents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ot India. These responsibilities include
the design. implementation and mainienance ol adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safcguarding of its asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and crrors, the
accuracy and complcieness of the accounting rccords, and the timwely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Respensibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 1in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intcmal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specilled under section 143(10) of the Companics
Act, 2013, to the cxtent applicable to an audit of internal {inancial conltrols and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequale
internal financial controls over financial rcporting with reference (o these f(inancial statements was
established and maintained and 1f such controls operafed effectively in all matenal respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal [inancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements, asscssing the nisk that a matenial weakness exists, and testing and cvaluating the design and
operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assesscd risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the asscssmicnt of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statenents, whether due to fraud or civor.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtamed is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinton on the intermal financial controls over Tinanciat reporting with reference to these financial

staterncits.

Mecaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Refercnce to these Financial
Statements

A company's intemal financial control over [inancial veporting with reference 1o these financial statements
is 4 process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the veliability of financial reporting and the

4
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preparation of financial statements for external purposcs in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal [inancial control over financial reporting with relerence to these financial
statcments includes thosc policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
rcasonable detail, accuraicly and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ol the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasunable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of financial
statemenlts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that reccipts and expenditures
ol the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, usc, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
stalcments.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper management ovenide of
controls, material misstatements due to errer or fraud may oceur and not be detecled. Also, projections ol
any cvaluation of the intemal tinancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in condilions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurcs may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matenial respeets, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference fo thesc financial statcinents and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with refercnce to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based
on the internal control over financial reporiing criteria cstablished by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institutc of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

pet Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2019



Nirpa Publishers & Printers Privale Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019
CIN: UT4B99DLIITIPTCO05776

{Amount in )

Notes Asat As at
31 March 2019 3 March 2018

Asscls
Non-currest assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 6,38,90.349 6.65.03.686
Financial assus
- [nveslinents 4A 20.67.58,790 20.67.18.435
- Loans 4C 35.04.09,662 28,72 86392
- Other financial assets 5 - 70.93Y
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 - 3.19.307
Other non-currenl assels 7 7.95.39.i133 8.00.68,99:1
Total non-curvent asscts 70.05,97,936 64,10,27,753
Current assets
Inventories [} 03.33,435 1,36.02.76"7
Financial assels
- Trade receivables 4B 6.41.57.020 16.80.20.648
- Loans 4C 9.86,317 9,129
- Cash and cash equivalents 40 5,89.77.051 50,66,553
- Other financial assels 5 70,939 68.40.31%
Other current ussels 7 2958717 51.98.828
Total current assets 13,64,84,479 19,88,23.243
Total assels 83,70,82.415 83,98,50.906
Equity aund liabilities
Equity
Equity share capual b 1,20,000 1.20.000
Other equily
- Rétained earings 10 70.39.78.305 66,41.65.]26
- Qther reserves 10 3.42.00.000 3.42.00.000
Total equity 75,82,98,305 71,84.85,126
Non-currcat liabilities
Finuncial liabilities
Berrowings 1B 40.81.581 FACA LS
Provisions 14 27.15,633 27.65.432
Delerred tax liability {net} 8 3.99.784 -
Total nen current liabifitics 72,00,398 | 97.96,347
Curreat liabilitics
Financial liabililies
- Borrowings LA 4.26.36.207
- Trade payables 12

Micro & Siall enterprise 27187 -

Other than Micro & Small enterprise 5.85.32.500 6. 1468603
- Other financial liabilities 13 67.73.932 6333373
Provisions 4 30,84 325 98220
Other current liabilities 13 1).65,768 10,009,120
Total current tiabilities 7,15,83.712 11,15,69,523
Total equity and Habilitics 83,70,82,413 83,98,50.996
Suminary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying noles are un integral part of (he financial statemcnts
As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalfl of the Board of Dircetors of
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004 Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants o
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per Yogesh Midha it GTp Himanshu Gupia
Partner [irector Director
Membership No,: 94941 DIN: 00053988 DHN: 00034013

Place : New Delhe
Dale : 27 May 2019




Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U74899DL 1971 PTCO05776

(Amount in 3}

For the year ended

For the year ended

NOIS ) March2019 31 March 2018
I Rewvenue {rom operations 16 22,65.23,174 15.12.32 608
1l Other income 17 3.50,61,209 3.00.90.768
Il Totat Encome ([+11) 26,15,84,383 18,13,23,376
IV Expenses
Cost of raw malerials and componens consumed 18 13.59.97.694 7.86,09.208
{Increase)/decrease in invenlorics ol finished goods and work in progress 20 (12,34,504) (81.601)
Publication expenses |9 1.98.11,494 1.25.10,769
Selling and distribution expenses 21 4048314 3422620
Employee benefits expense 22 1,79.63.,844 1,94.96,62:
Finanee cost 24 78.36,127 29.24.688
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 50,28,886 29.83.150
Other expenses 25 2.00,08,015 2,01.96.377
Total expenses 20,94,59,870 14,00,61,835
V¥V Profit before tax (111-1V) 5,21,24,513 4,12,61,541
Y1 Tux expeose: 28
Currend Tax 1.06,08.617 84.12,753
Mat credit availed {11.49201) (10,38.307)
Adjustment ol lax relating (o earlicr periods (Net ol MAT credit of 712,681 21.62.368 1, 12.05¢
Deferrad tax charge 7,10,652 §.37.258
Total tax expenses 1,23,32,736 £3,23,755
V1L Profit for the year (V-V]) 3,97.91,777 3,29,37,786
Y111 Other comprehensive income
- Items not be reelassified to profit or loss in subsequent year 26
Re-measurement gains/(losses} on defined benedit plans 29,541 2,12.401
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined bengfit plans (8.139) ({58.322)
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIT+ VIID) 3,98,13,179 3,30,91,665
X Earnings per equity share: 27
(1) Basic 3316 2.745
(2) Diluted 3316 2,745
2.1

Summary of significant ageounting policies

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibot & Associates LLP
ICAl Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.; 94941

Place : New Delhi r
Date :27 May 2019 1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 7
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5 ﬂlph—ujﬂﬁ ,_‘El)'manshu Gupta
Director irector

DIN: Q0033988 DIN: 00054013



Nirjn Publishers & Printers Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN: U74899DL1971PTCO05776

~ (Amount in T

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustment 1o reconcile profit before tax to net cash (Tows:
Deprecialion & amortisation expenses

Provision (or doubtful debts written back

Fair valuation {zain¥loss current investmenl

Interest expense

Interest income

Dividend income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :
(Decrease)/increase in (rade payables

Irerease in provisions

Increase in other currenl tiabilitics
Increase/(decrease) in other Ninancial liabilities
Deerease in rade receivables

Pecrease/(inereasa) in invenlories

(Increase) in loans and advances
Deerease/{Increase) in non current asscls

Cash generated from operating activities
Direct taxes paid {(nel of refunds)

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase ¢l [ixed asscts inctuding work-in-progress and capilal advance
Dividends received

Tnvestiment in fixed deposit having maturily more than 3 months

Loan given (o related partics

[nterest reeeived

52124513 41261541
50,28.886 29.83.150
(7.47.250) (2.05.436)

(40.35%) 31600
71,68.901 24,88.025
(3.31.84.321) (2.95.25.140)
- (1.300)
3,03,50,374 1,70,32,440

(29.08.916) 3.96.33.876

3.09.800 7.27.269
21.56.648 5.49.137
1,45.729 (6.13.645)
10.46,10.878 2.49.47.551
42.89.332 (41,36.860)
(9.84.425) (2.38,943)
23.19.409 (47.37317)
14,02,68,829 7,31,63,508

(85,17.676) (16.02,754)

13,17,51,153 7,15,60,754

(23.55.549) {5.04.66.100)

- 1.300
67,753,000 (67,75.000)

(6.30,31.033)
3.32.49.639

(5,09.99.711)
2.94,59,822

Net cash flow from investing activitics (B3)

Cash flows from financing activitics

(Repayment)/ Procecds ol long-lerm borrowings {net)
(Repayment)/ Praceed from short-term borrowings (iret)
Inlerest paid

Net cash used in in financing activities ()

(2,53.61,943) (7,87,79,689)
(27.12.676) 1.00.00.000
(4,26.39.207) 43.70.261
(71,26,829) (24.88.025)
(5,24,78,712) 1,20,82,236

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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{Amount in T}

Net increase in cash and eash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear
Cash and eash cquivalents at the end of the year

Componeuts of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Cheques in hand

Balanccs with banks

- on current aceount

Total cash and cash equivalents (note 4D)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

5.39.10.498 48.63.301
50.66.553 2.03.252
5,89,77,651 50,66,553
20.481 10.881
1.64.52.304 48,25.447
4.25.04,266 2.30.223
5,89,77,051 50.66,553

Long term borrowings
(including eurrent

Short term borrowings

maturitics)
As at 31 March 2018 1.00.06,000 4,26.39.207
Cash flows (27,12.676) (4,26.39.207)
Non cash changes - -
As at 31 March 2019 72,87,324 -

Surmmary of significant accounting pelicics

)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repoit of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
{CAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Pattner
Membership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
Date : 27 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of

Nirja Publishers & Printers Privzyniled

Saﬁfn‘C{pm

Director
DIN: 00053988

e (/‘}‘I

imanshu Gupia
Director
DIN: 00034015
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A. Equity share copital:

No. of shares Amount in 2
Issued, subscribed and Tully paid up (share of ¥ 10 eaeh)
Ab 3] Murceh 2018 12.000 126,000
At 31 Mareh 2019 12,000 1,20.000
B, Oiier equity
Reserve & Surplus Total
Retalned carnings | General reserve °
Asat | Apil 2017 63,10,73 46 5.42.00,000 68,52,73,401
Profit for the year 3,29.37,786 - 3,29,37,786
Other comprefiensi ve income for the year 1,53.879 - 1,53.879
Total Comprehensive Income for 1he yeay 3,30,91,665 - 3,30,%1,665
As at 3§ March 2018 66,41,65,126 542,000,000 71,83,65,126
As at 1 April 2018 66.41,65,126 5.42.00.000 71.83.65.126
Profit for he year 19791777 - 3,97,91,777
Other comprehensive income lor Lthe year 21,402 - 21,402
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 3,98,13,179 - 3,08,13,179
Asatdl Mareh 2019 70,39,78,305 3,42,00,000 75,81,78,305
Summary of significanl accounting podicies (refer note 2.1}
The accompanying notes are an inlegral pari of the financial stalements.
As per our report of even dale
y
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of /-’J
ICAl Firm Registration Mo, 101049W/E300004 Nirja Pablishers & Printers Private Limited

Chartered Accountanis

( i
M s
per Yogesh Midha SuwW' I'Iiydnshu Gupta
Partner r Director Birector
Membership No.: 94941 v ) DIN: 00053988 DIN: 00054015

Place ; New Delhi i
Date : 27 May 2019
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CIN: U74899DLI1971PTCO05776

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3| March 2019
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limited (the company) is a private company incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, [956. The company is wholly owned subsidiary of S Chand and Company Limited (Formerly
S Chand and Company Private Limited). The registered office of the company is located at 7361, Ram Nagar, Qutab
Road, Delhi- 110055, The company is primarily engaged in printing and binding of books for 8 Chand Group.

These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) financial
statements incorporate amoun{s and disclosures related to the Company only.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from Lime to time

For all periods up to and including the vear ended 31 March 2017, the Comnpany prepared its unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
fogether with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companies {Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAFP).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financial assels and
liabilittes measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in TNR {Indian Rupees).

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-cuwrrent classification.
An asset is classified as current when:
i. Itisexpected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

it.  Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading

iii. It is expected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period, or

iv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at Teast twelve

months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
i, Itis expected to be setiled in normal operating cycle
ti.  1tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii. 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  There ts no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle 1s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its eperating cycle.
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Notes to finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless oﬁtherwise stated)

2.3

2.4

Foreign Currencies

Functional and presentationad currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Funectional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spol rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
ol exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and L.oss.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures certain finaneial instruments at fair value at each reporting date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between markel participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i.  in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii.  in the absence of a principal inarket, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants acl in their economic best interest.

A fair value ineasurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

i. Level 1 — Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in aelive markets for identical assets or liabilities
ii. Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is dircetly or indirectly observable
iii. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2019
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporling period.

Extemnal valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets such as valuation of unqueted investments and
significant liabilities such as contingent consideration, where ever applicable. Involvement of external valuer is
decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independenee and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s nranagement verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation Lo contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For lhe purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises aecounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.
i.  Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Refer 2.20)
ii.  Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 42)
iii.  Investment in unquoted equity shares (Note 4A)
iv.  Finaneial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 42)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contraets with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of books ts recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the carrier for transportation

The Comnpany considers whether there are other promises in the contract thal are separate performance obligations
to whieh a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of
books, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant tinancing
components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Rendering of services

The company provides job work services to its eustomers, The Company recognises revenue over time, using the
outpul method measuring the completion of ditferent stages of consultancy project relative to the total completion
the service, because the customer receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company over the time.
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Variable ¢onsideration

if the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to customer of cash
rebate/discount if payment is cleared within specified due dates.

. Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returmns is made primarily on the basis of historical retumn rates as this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration lo which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS |15 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, the Company
recognises a refund liability. A right of retwmn asset (and corresponding adjustmient to change in inventory is also
recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

. Volume rebates

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer, To
estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most tikely amount
method for contracts with a single-volume thresbold and the expected value method for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The selected method that best prediets the amount of variable consideration is primarity driven by
the number ol volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates,

. Cash rebates

The Coinpany provides cash rebates to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated time
given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimaled basis based on historical rends. The
Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund
liability for the expected future rebates.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Contpany performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a conltract assel is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities
A confract liabtlity is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. 1f a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment 1s due {whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contraet.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable for all financtal instruments measuwred at amortised eost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorler period, where appropriate, to the
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gross catrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual 1erms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and shinilar options) bul does not consider the expected credit losses. [nterest income is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when {he company’s right Lo receive dividend is established by the reporting date,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Ind AS 115 adoption

Ind AS |15 supersedes Ind AS |8 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Ind AS | 15 establishes a five-step model 10 account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 1 |5 requires entities to exercise judgement. taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting
for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs divectly related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the
standard requires extensive disclosures.

The company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 April 2018. Under this inethod, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The standard is applied retrospectively only to
contracts thal are not completed as at the date of initial application and comparative information is not restated in the
financial statements. Further there were no significant adjustments required to the retained earnings at April [, 2018.
The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact on the recognition and measurement of revenue and
related items in the financial resukts.

Income taxes
Income taxes consist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and assets.

Current income fax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countries where the Comnpany operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in ¢orrelation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income (OCT) or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assels and
Jiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporling dale.



Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1971PTC005776

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

ii. Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with imvestments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements. when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be eontrofled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets ave recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deduetible temporary differences, and lhe carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the inittal recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii. Inrespect of deductible temparary differences associaled with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the teinporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

In the situations where the company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Incoine-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax
laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in
respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the company’s gross total
meome is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences
which reverse after the tax haliday period is recognized in the period in which the temporary differences originate.
However, the Company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For
recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

The carrying amoun( of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is sctiled, based on tax rales (and tax laws) (hat have been enacted or subslantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred lax relating to itemns recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in comrelation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are aftset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set off eurrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a period is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income ax during the speeified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed 1o
be carried forward. In the period in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the
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Gutdance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act,
[961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit
Entitlement.”™ The Company reviews the “MAT credil entitlement™ asset at each reporting date and writes down the
asset to the extent the company does not have Convineing evidence that it will pay nonmal tax during the specified
period.

Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP). property, plant and equipment as at | April 2016, were carried in the
balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainnent losses, if any.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of property, plant
and equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost al the transition date, as at 1*' April 2016.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
inpairment fosses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criterta are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be veplaced at intervals, the Company
recogrises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit
or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits assoeiated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured rehiably.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

An item of property, planl and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the assel (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is
included in the stateinent of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment

Till 31% March 2017, depreciation on property, plant and equipment was being provided on written down value
method. W.e.f. I April 2017, depreciation is being provided on straight line method.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improveinents, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on inanagement’s technical assessment of useful
economic life of the assets.
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Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by management | Useful life as per Schedule IT |
Plant and equipment 25 years | _i5 years

Furniture and fixture {0 years 10 vyears

Office equipment 5 years 5 years B

Vehicle 10 years 8 years

Computer 6 years - 3 years

Leasehold improvements arc amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less.
Assets costing ¥ 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

Second hand machinery purchased during the year is depreciated considering its useful life based upon management’s
assessment is 15 years.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimaled useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual vatues, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all its item of intangible assets as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the
transition date, viz. April 01, 2016.

In accordance with Ind AS 10] provisions related to first time adoption, the Coempany has elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively fromn April 01, 2016. As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill, have been carried forward with no
adiustments. {(Refer Note 4).

Recognition and measarement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

lntangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impainment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assel are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on inlangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

&
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2.9

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to deterinine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. [fnot, the change in useful life from indefinite {o finite is made
on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the company can demnonstrale all the following:

1. The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. lts
intention to complete the asset.

i Tts ability to use or sell the asset. How the asset will generate future economic benefits
iii.  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or seil the asset
iv.  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset o be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for yse. [t is amortized on a straight line basis
over the period of expected future benefit from the related project. Amortization is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

A summary of the policics applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally generated
or acquired
Computer software Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the pertod of usefuj lives
Copyrights Finite {5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright
Goodwill on business | In-definite No amortization Acquired
combination B

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time fo get ready for its inlended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of Lhe asset. Al
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and. other
costs that an enlity tncurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific assel or asseis and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operaling lease. A lease thal transfers substantially
atl the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. An operating lease is
a lease other than a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories
Inventories aré valued at the lower of cosl and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

+ Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incwrred in bringing the inventories Lo their present
lacation and condition. Cost is determined on First in first out (FIFO) basis.

- Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacily, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on First in firsl out (FIFO) basis.

Net realisable value is the eslimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

[mpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
ndication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset 1s required, the Company estimates the asset’s
rccoverzble amount. An asset’s recoverable antount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU} fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely mdependent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. 1 no such transactions
can be identificd, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied ro project future cash flows afler the fifth year.

lmpairment losses of continuing operations, including iinpairment on invenlories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 1f such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used (o determine the asset’s recoverable amounl since (he last impairment loss

g
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was recognised. The reversal 1s limited so that the carrying amount of the assel does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amounlt that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised tor the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the assel is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

[mpairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group ol CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impajrment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in fulure periods.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finaneral liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Inirial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asscts not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, fransaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets withm a tune frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the dale that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurcinent
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classitied in four categories:

1. Debt instruments al amortised cost

ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQCI)
iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equily instrurnents at fair value through profil or loss (FVTPL)
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instrument at amortised cost
A “debt instrument” is mmeaswred at the amaortised cost it both the following conditions are met:
i. The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and
ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and
nterest (SPP1) on the principal amount cutstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EJR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit
or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOC]
A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
s The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and sclling the financial

assets, and

» The asset’s contractual cash Tows represent SPPL
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initiallv as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equify instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent ehanges in the (air value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basts. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then alt fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts froin OCI te P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit & loss.

Financial Asset af FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for Rnancial asset. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FYTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amertized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

e Therights to receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parfy under a ‘pass-through™ arrangement; and
either {(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, ar (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retaincd substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards ol ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
comlpany continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In thal
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferved asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the righls and obligations that the Company has retained,
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial asseifs

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expecled credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

* Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost ¢.g., loans, debl securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

o Financial assets that are measured as at FVTQC]I

* |ease receivables under Ind-AS 17,

+ Contract assets and trade receivables under ind-AS 8.

o Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

s Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

i.  Trade receivables, and
ii.  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment toss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has becn a significant increase in the credit risk since mitial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
sigmificantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for imparnment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument unproves such that there is no fonger
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment Joss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credil osses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within |2 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

s All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over
the expected life of the {inancial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.

* (Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment |oss aflowance on portfatio
of ils trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
staterment of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses” in the statement of profit
& loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet preseniation for various financial instroments is described below:-

a)  For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, 1.e.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount.

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, 1.c.
as a liability.

¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
amount” in the OCIL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial insiruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.. financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination,

Finaneial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial habilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial guarantee, issued in relation to obligation of subsidiaries are
initially recognised at their fair value {as a part of cost of investment in the subsidiary)

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon mitial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in ind AS 109 are satisfied. For hiabilities designated as FVTPL, farr
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIl. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company mnay transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

K%
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Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premtum on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pari of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the stalement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings.

Financial guaranree contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss il incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payiment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance deterniined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A Tlinancial hability i1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancclled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or incdification is treated as the de-recognitton of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Re-classification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recogniticn, no reclassification 1s made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financijal assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is inade only if'there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business imodel are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s opcrations. Such changes arc evident to external partics. A change i the business medel occurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perforim an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the inmediately next reparting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of Financial Instriuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle (he liabilities simultaneously.

Retirement and other emplovee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. [fthe contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for examnple, a reduction in future payinent or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for its employees i.c. gratuity. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation at each reporting date.
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Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained camings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassifred to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

*  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

®  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net inlerest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and

loss:

e  Service costs coinprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and

. Net interest expense or inconie.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additienal amount that it expects lo pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setlle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of proftt or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specihic to the liability. When discounting s used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. [f il 15 no longer
probable that an outflow would be require to settle the obligation the provision is reversed.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability 15 a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
oceurtence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond tbe control of the company or a present
obligation that is nol recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because il cannot be measwred reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision tor decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs are provided
at the present value of expected costs Lo the settle the obligation using estimated cash flow and recognised as part of
the cost of the particular asset. The cash fiow are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to
the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurved and recognised in the statement
of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted

>



2.18

2.19

2.20

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL197IPTC005776

Notes to {inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added or deducted froin the
cost of the asset.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in (he balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share {EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable (o equity shareholders
of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS ammounts are calculated by dividing the profit or foss attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for
interest and other charges te expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average
number of equity shares outslanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all ditutive potential equity shares.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent liabilities). The management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgement

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the finaneial statements;

Operating lease commitments — Company as a lessee

The Company has entered inlo lease agreements with lessor and has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not retains the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determunation of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain econtracts for the sale of books include cash rebates and volume rebates and a right to return the goods that
give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method befter predicts the anount of

consideration to which it will be entitled.

The most likely amount method is used for those contracts with a single voluine threshold, while the expected value
method is used for contracts with more than one volume threshold.

(>
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Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Coinpany considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Campany determined that the estimates of variable consideration

are not constrained based on its historical experience, business [orecast and the current economic conditions. in
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significanlt risk of causing a material adjustinent to the canrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circuinstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the tevel of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuify)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations., An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the nterest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the
defined benefit obligation.

The morlality rate is based on publicly available mortality tabies. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response 1o demographic changes. Future satary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the respective countries,

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 29,

Provision for trade receivable

Trade receivables do hot carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable
balances and historical experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Individual trade receivables are written off
when management deems thein not to be collectible.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assels, are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impainnent. 1f any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (*CGU") is the greater of its value in use and its fair value

less costs (o sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated furture cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-lax discount rale that reflects current market assessments of the time valug of money and the risks specific to

3
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the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impainnent testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the stnallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (‘CGU"}.

Market related mformation and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
managemenl! has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long (erm growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Estimating variable consideration for right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates

Certain contracts for the sale of books include a right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates that give rise to
variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount imethod based on which method better predicts the ainount of consideration to which
it will be entitled.

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of electricily with
cash rebates.

Standards issued but not yet effective

a. Ind AS 116 “Leases™
Ind AS [ 16 Leases was notified on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS {7 Leases. including appendices thereto.
Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler April, 01, 2019.

Ind AS | 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases
under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - lcases of ‘low-valuc’ asscts and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the Jease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 1s substantially unchanged trom today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two
types of leases: operating and finance leases.

The effective date for adoption of ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or afler April 1, 2019. The standard
permits two possible methods of transition:

{a) Full retrospective -- Retrospectively to each prior pertod presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

(b} Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of tnitial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease

payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

(a) lts carrying amount as il the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s
ineremental borrowing rate at the date of initia) application or

{b) An amount equal to the {ease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related
to that lease recognized under Ind AS |7 immediately before the date of initial application,

Certain practical expedients are availahle under hoth the imethods.
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The company is under the process of evaluation of available transition options and a reliable estimate of the
guantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements will only be possible once Company completes its
assessment.

b. Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Unceriainty over Income Tax Treatment

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncerfainty over income tax treatments under ind AS [2.
According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevani tax authority accepting each
tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which
has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatiment when determining
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i} Full retrospective approach - Under this approach,
Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS § —
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively
with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without
adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods begimming on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company will adopt the standard on April I, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the
date of iaitial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS |2 Appendix C would be insignificant in the financial statements.
¢.  Amendment to Ind AS 12: Ineome Taxes

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendiments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes',
in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amnendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive incoine or equity according to where the entily originally recognised those past transactions or
events.

Eftective date for appiicalion of this amendment is anriual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company
is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements,

d. Amendment to Ind AS 19; Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or seltlement occurs
during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs
during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to:

s Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curlailment or settlement,
using the actuarial assumptions used to re-measure the nel defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event,

* Determine nel interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using:
the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offcred under the plan and the plan assets after that
event; and the discount rate used to re-measure that net defined benefit liability (asset).
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The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on seftlement,
without considering the effect of the assel ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss.

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling afler the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any
change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period that begins on or afler | April 2019, These amendments will apply only to any future
plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the Company.

e. Amendment to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Feature with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt inslrument can be measured at amortised cost or al fair value through other comprehensive
income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion} and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that
classification. The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI eriterion regardless of the
event or circumstance thal causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives
reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning on or afler | April
2019,

The company is under the process of evaluation impact on the financial statements of the Company,
f.  Amendment to Ind AS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to
which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture (Jong-term interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in Ind
AS 109 applies to such long-term interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying Ind AS 109, an entity does not take account of any losses of the
associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment. recognised as adjustments to the net
investment in the associate or joint venture that arise fromn applying Ind AS 28 Investiments in Associates and Joint
Venliures.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 for annual reporting periods on or
after | April 2019.

The company is under the process of evaluation impact on the financial statements of the Company.
g Annual improvement to Ind AS (2018);
These improvements include:

Amendments to Ind AS 103: Party to a Joint Arrangements obtains control of a business that is a Joint
Operation

The amendments clarify that, when an party to a joint arrangement obtains control of a business that is a joint
aperation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages. including remeasuring previously
held interests in the assots and liabilities of the joint operation al fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its
entire previously held interest in the joint operation.
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An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or afler 1 April 2019. These amendments are currently not
applicable to the Company but may apply to future transactions.

Amendments to Ind AS 111: Joint Arrangements

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control of the joint
operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defined in Ind AS 103. The amendments
clarify that the previously held interests in that joint operation are not re-measured.

An entily applies those amendments to iransactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 Apnif 2019. These amendments are currently not applicable to the
Company but may apply to futurc transactions.

Amendments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs

The amendinents clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop
a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies those amendmenis. An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Since the Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments,
the Company does not expect any effect on its financial statements.
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3. Praperty, pland and equipmend
{Amonnlin )

Pianl & Furnitore & T i Hlwe > IT:QIEI;J_
5 " Vehicles® A Camnpurier Toinl

egnipmenl Fixtnres __equipmenl tmprovemnent
Coxt
ALl Aprid 2017 | 84750651 518003 - 16260360 (BT el {0 LB 220 5 el
Add nons I Y I i) i 8400943 964,045 B & 3,04 66, 100
1)ispusals - - - - - - -
At 3] March 2018 4,96.36,173 5,948,003 1,84,00,933 1530,101 193,422 12,909,229 7.26,07 861
Addilions 2275400 - = 80.149 - - 2185549
Ynsposals - - - - - - -
At 3 ¥arch 2019 5,19.11,573 5.48,003 184,410,933 26,110,250 _ L322 12,99.229 7419.63,410
Accnmunlated deprecintion
ALl Aprll 2017 20,01.624 [,58.095 e .01 298 46,967 Y Kt 147,003
Charge B the year 1736 149 544950 5015652 229,143 2307 33733 IR487172
Dizgovsals - - - - - - -
ALl March 2018 37,3777 2,13,045 515652 8.38.441 70914 6,68,153 GO, 178
Charge (or the year 2506711 54950 17,488,057 358383 23047 13735 SUDSESG
Ooposals - - - - N -
At 3] March 2019 62,43.988 2,67,995 22,63.709 11,296,824 04,861 10,0508+ 1,10,73,061)

Nel block
As i 31 March 2008 - 4.58,98.403 :].J4,9:'|8 1.78.85.281 16,93 660 1,221,508 0,30.876 6.65,0).G86

Y
Asal 3 March 2019 4,56,67 585 2,380,008 16137224 14.13.426 93,5612 2.93,545 6,38,90.349

*Velucles under foan vontracts at 31 March 2019 was T10.239.607 (31 March 2018 211315408} Additions duimz the year inclide 3 N (31 March 2018 211124, 710] ol

Vibicles purchased on Loan Loaned assers are pledued as secunity for e relaled loan

Nate' The company has chaieed ots estimzte of deprecipien an property, plantt and edupment fram fmanesal vew 2017-18, impact ot ehiunge s given below

MParlicoinrs {Amonnlin)
Deprecianion as per wiitten dewn value method 47,460,075
Depreciation s ey stragh line acthod 2897072

Profit for previons year increased by . 38.68.903




Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limiled
Notes to financial statemendts for the year cuded 31 Marel 2019
CIN: U74899DLIYTIPTCOS776

4. Financial assets

4A. Non-current investments

{Amountin )

Asat
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

a.  Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investments in equity shares (Linguoted)
Investments in subsidrary of kolding company

17,783,000 (31 March 2018 17.785,000) equity shares in Satani Digital Educahon Initiative Private 17.78,50,000 17.78.50.000
Limited
801 {31 March 2018: 801) equity shares in Vikas Pnbhishing [fouse Private Limited 2.86,95.163 2.86,95,165
20,65,45,165 26,65.45,168
b.  Investments al fair value through profit and loss
i Investments in equity shares (Quoted)
S00 (3} March 2018, 5000 sharcs of € 10 each fully paid np in Siate Bank of Indra 1,60.375 1,24,950
200 ({31 March 2018 200) shares ol'2 10 each Tully paid up i Onental Bank ol Commerce 23,250 18,320
1,83,625 1,43,270
i Invesiments in Government and Trust securities ([Tnquoted)
National Savings Certilicaics 30.000 30.000
34,000 30,000
MNet investments 20,67,58,790 20,67,18 435
Aggregate amount ol quoted investments 1,83,625 1,43,270
Aggregale amount of unquoled investments 20,65,75,165 20,65,75,165
Aggregate amount nf impairment in value ol invesiments - -
4B. Trade receivables
As at As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Trade receivahles

Secured, considercd good

Unseciired, considered gond

Revcivable which Trave signilicant increase i eredit risk
Recervable eredil impaired

64157020

Less: Allowance for expected credil loss

Secured, eonsidercd good

Unsecured, considered pood

Receivable which have signilicam incrcase m eredit risk
Receivable credit simpaired

V8020 6448
- 7.47.250
6,41,57,020 16,87,67.898

(7.47.250)

- (7,47,250)

Nel trade receivables
Secured, considered good - B
Unsecured considered good 6.:41.37.020 162, 80,20,648
Reccivable which bave sigmilicant increase in credit risk - -
Receivable credit impaired B .

6,41,57.020 16.80,20,648
‘Frade veccivables rom related par(ies (refer note 31) 6,32,57,603 16.87.67,398
The moyement in impairment of tradce receivables is as follows:

As at As al

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Upening balance
Additions/ (Reversals)

Closing balance

747250 9.52 686
(7.47.250) (2,05,436)
- 747,250
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4C,

Laaims

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Security deposits - Non- current 11.76.704 10,84 467
Security deposils - Current 53.870 33.870
Loan w relued parties {refer note 313 34.972.32,958 28.62.01,925
Advances recoverable in cash or kind {refer note {a) below) 9,323,447 40,259
Total 35,13,95,979 28,73.80.521
Current 9,806,317 94,129
Non-Current 35,04,09.662 28,72,86,392
Nete (a)
Advances recoveruble in cash or Rind
Considered good, unsecured 9.32,447 40,239
Considered pood, secured - -
Recoverable which have significant inerease m credit sk -
Recoverable - eredit impaired - -
932447 40,259
Less Altowance for expected credit loss - -
9,32,447 40,259
4D, Cash and eash equivalents
As at As at

3J March 2019

31 March 2018

Balances with banks
~ In current aceounts

4,25 .04.250

230225

Casl in hand 20,481 10,881
Chogues in hand 1,64,52.304 48,25.447
Total 5,89,77,051 50,66,553
Current 5,89.77,051 50,606,553
Nen-Corrent . -
Other financial assels

As at As al

31 Buech 2019

31 March 2018

Margin money deposit {refcr note a below)

-Deposits wilh origini) maturity for more than 3 months but icss than 12 monlhs - H7.75.000
-1eposits with onginal maturity for more than 12 months 50,200 50,200
-laterest accrued hut not duc on lixed deposits {on shor( term deposits) - 63,318
-Enierest accrued bul not dve on fixed deposits (on long tenn deposits) 20,739 20.739
Tolat 70,939 69.11,257
Current 70,939 68,40.318
Non-Current - 70,239

Note {(a)

i, Margin moncy deposits with carrying amount of 350,200 (31 March 2018, 250,200) is subjecl to Registralion of UK VAT, Unterest accrued on margiv
muoney deposil is 120,739 (3! March 2018: 220,739,

1. Margin money deposits wath currving mount of T Nal (31 Mareh 2018, T6.775.000) given to UK board (or bwdding in printing project, the amount
has been refunded in current year due Lo cancellation ol bidding process, Tnterest acerued on deposit 1s € Ni) (31 Marcl: 2018 265,318)

6. Inventories

As al As at
31 Murch 2019 31 varch 2018
[ malersals 4.67 385 59.71.421
Stores and sparcs 88.44.667 40,416,542
Senu Lrushed goods 21,183 35.8:4.804
Total 93,33.435 1,36,02,767
Current 93,33.435 1.36.02,767

Non-Current
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TA.

78,

Onher assels

Prepaid expenses

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Prepaid expenses {Non current) 16,202 96,500
Prepaid expenscs (Current) 3.29.130 5.33,165
Totat 545332 6,29,665
Otler assels

As al Asat

31 March 2059

31 March 2008

Adviances recoverable in cash or kind 787903 19.31.124
MA'T eredit entittement {(Non current) 7.11.40,692 68278510
Incame lux recoverable (nel of provision for lax) 83.82.241 10693984
Balance with stalutory ¢ govesninent authoritics 16,42 684 27.34.539
Total 8,19,53,520 8.46,38,1587
Current 29,39,717 51,98,828
Noon-Current 7,95,39,135 8,00,68,994
Deferred taxes
Asat As at

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Items leading (o ereation of deferred fax asscts

lmpact of expendilure charged 10 the slatement of profit and loss account n the eutrrent year but

allowed for lax purposes on paymenl basis in subscquent years

Oihers
Total deferred fax assets

[tems leading to creation of deferred 1ax liabilides

Mxed asses: mpact of differences between tax depreeiation and deprecialion/ amortizaliou charged in

the linancial slalements
Total deferved tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

{This space has been mientionally lefi hlank}

18.29 892 11.70.739

{46,355 35,128
17,83,537 12,05,867
2183321 8,86.560
21,83,321 8,66,560
{3,09,784) 3,19.307
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o

1.

Share Capital

Asat As ol

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Authorised
100000 130 Mach 2008 100.000) equity shares of Rs 10/ each [EEREERIH 10,030,000
Issued, subseribed and fully paid up
12,000 (21 March 2018 12,000} equaty shares oFRs 10/- sach l.'.’,(l_()i(l 1.20.000

1,20,000 1,240,000
a, Reconciliation of the equity shares votstanding at the beginning and al the end of the repurting year
B Muinbers (Amount in T)

Issucd, subscribed and fully paid up
Asat | April 2017 12,000 1,20,000
Issued dunng the year - -
Asat 3l Varch 2018 12,000 1,200,000
Isaned during the year - -
Asat 31 March 2019 12,000 1,20,000

b, Terngf rights attached 1o cquity shaves

The Company has only une class ol equity shires having 2 pan value of 210 pershire Bach holder of equity stires s entitled to ona vele pe share The Copany decliees and
pavs chvidends m Indian rupevs. The dividend proposed by the Board ol Dirgetors 1 subject to the appraval of the sharchalders in the enswing Annual General Mecling, In the
event of kquidasion of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled io receive remmning assets of the Company. after distinbusion of all preferennial amounts The
distzsbution will b i propertion w the nnmber of cquity shares hekl by the sharcholders.

¢. Shares held by hulding compnny and rheir subsidiaries

As al As al
3L March 2019 31 March 2018

S Chand And Company Lunned {formerly 5 Chand Ansd Company Private Limited ) 1.20.000 120,004

600 (31 March 2018 600) shares held in the name of Mr. Dinesh famar Jhunjhnuwala as nonnnee or benefical mnterest oI 8 Chand And Company Luuited (Formerly S Chand
And Company Private Limied)

d. Details of shareholders halding mare than 5% equity shares in the Campany:

No. of shares held Y of hulding
S Chand and Company 1 nned, the Holding Company (ormerly § Chand And Company Privare Limited)
Asur 3 Murch 2018 12,000 STV
Asut 31 Mnrch 2019 12.000 1008

As per reeords of the Company, wehwling s repister of shureholders meimber and other declarations received Trom shareholder reearding beneficial intorest, Me above
sharehniding represcims both legal and beneBezal gwnerslap ol shares,

Other cquity

As at As at

31 Mnrch 2019 3t March 2018
Retained earning
Balance as per last (inancial staleinents 0641 65,126 63,10,73 4461
Add Prolit for tlic year 39791777 3,29.37.78¢6
Add Ciher comprehensive income lor the yem 21402 1.53.879
Ralance s the end of reporting yeir 70,39,78,305 66,41,65.126
General veseryve
Balance as per last hinancial statements 542 00 0o 54200000
Inerease(decreise ) during the yesr - -
Balance as the end of repurting year 542,004,000 4,41,00,000

Nature and purpoze of rescrvers

General reserve
Uuder the crstwhile Companies Act 1936, general reserve was created through nn annnal (ransler of net meeme a1 a speeificd percentage in accordanee with applicabie

regoiations, The porpasc of these translers was 1o ensurc ihat 1 a dividend distzibution n a given vear is ore than 10% of the paid-up capial nI the Company o that vear, then

the 1otal dividend distbution is less than the o distribotable tesults for that vear Consequent 1o inrroduction of Compames Act 2013 the reqrurement w mandatorily transter a
speailied pereenage of the ney profit o general reserve hns been withdmwn lowever, the mnount previoush ansferred 10 \he general reserve can be wiilised only in accordance
willi the speeilie requuenerns of Campamies Acl, 2013
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ITA,

Borrowings

Current horrowings

(Amouont in )

Asut
31 Mareh 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Vehicle loans
Indian rapee koo from bank {secured) (refer note b’ below)

Cash eredit

Indian rupec loan from State Bank of India (sceured) (reler nole "a” below)
Bank overdral

Fotal

I ess Amounl presenled under "other financial habilines”

T'ntat

Secured
Unsecured

3202343 29.69.585
- 3,716,069
z 34,093,138
32,002,343 4,56,08,792

2069585

4,26,39,207

4.26,39,207

A The company has availed cash credil facilizy roin Siate Bank of India and carries interest rate ranging from §.33% 10 10 75% p a. winch is repavable on demand and secured
v (1) hypotheeanion of enrrenl assels (present and fulure) (i) hivpelhecation of Axed assels {presenl and Nitnre, except financed by oiher bank and Mnancial msiitutions) (iii}
Covporate guaniniee of 5 Chaad and Company Linnted {Formerly 8 Chand and Compaiy Prrviite Lumsted) The Bacility Tias been paid doving the vear

b, Vehiele Loan from IDFC Bank (aken during ¥Y 2017-18 and eavries inlerest rate -« B,26% p.a. The loan is vepayable i 37 mon(bly mstallents of 2 307,072 Tl loan 15
seeurcd by hypotheeanon of Ihe respective vehicles.

[E13, Non-curreet horrowings
Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Vehicle loans
Indian rupee loan from hank (secured) (efer nole ™D above) 411,84 981 7030415
Total 40,84,981 TN30.415
Secured 48,84 981 70,30,415
Unseeurcd - -
12, Trade payables
Asal As at

3t March 2019

J it March 2018

Currend

Trade payables of micro enderpises and small enterprises (refer note 333
Trade payables of related entities {refer note 31)

Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterpnses

Tolal Trade payables

Current
Nen eurrent

27.187 -
1,96,36,852 2,22.81.975
3.88.05 648 3.91.86,624
5 35.59.657 6.14,68,603
5,85,59.687 6,14.68,603
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13.

31 March 2019

Other fimancial lialilities

As at As at

31 March 2019 31 Mlarch 2018
Sevnttly deposit payvable - 7.00.000
Currenmt maturity ol long lean loans {refer uote FIA) 1202343 2069583
Lmployee reluted iabilities 28,5181 26.83,788
Advance from eustomers 6.77.686 -
Interest acerued but not dug 42,072 -
Total 67,73,932 $3,53,373
Currend 67,73,932 63.53,373
Non currend - -
. Provisions
As at As at
31 Mareh 2019 31 Marel 2018
Provision for pratuity (Non enrent) 27.15.637 27.63.932
Provision for gty (Current} A38915 18619
Provision for leave encashiment 34 863 50,601
Provision lor inconie tax (net ol advance tax) 26.54.397 -
Total 57,99,958 28.65,152
Current 30,84,525 99,220
Noo current 2715633 27.65,932
. Other liabilities
As at Asnt

31 March 2018

Other payables:

Statutory dues

Provident Fund and Employee State lnsurance
Gouls and Services Tax Pavable

Tax Deductled at Source

Total

Current
Non eurrent

214,540 187,05
2573552 97 498
3.78.670 7.21,007
3165768 10,09,120
31.65,768 10,09,120

£ty speece Jas been aneniionally lefl blink}
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[6. Revenue from apcrations

{Ameunt in )

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Sale of manufactnred producis
Finished books

Sale of scrvices
lob work

Other operating revenue
Serap sules

Total revenue from operations

Disaggregated revenue information

20.03,87,221

13,06,06.945

2.30,23.590 38791631
25,12.363 18.34,032
22,65,23,174 15,12,32,608

For 1he year cnded
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 Maveh 2018

India
Dutside India
Total revenue lrom contracts with custemers

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods iranslerred ol a point in time

Servives transferred over lime

Total revenue from contracts wilh customers

226523174

15.12.32.608

22,65.23,174

15,12.32,608

20.28.99.584
2.36.23.590

11,24,40977
3.87.91.631

22,65,23.174

15.12,32,608

The Cormpany collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) on behall of the Goverrment and henee, GST is not included in Revenue (rom operations,

Conrtract balances

As L As g
31 vlarch 2019 31 March 2018
Trade reccivables 041,537,020 16.80,20 648

Camrel assels
Contrael liabilites

‘Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on lerms of 180 days. Provision for expected credil losses 1s nol ereated for intercompany

tride receivables

Right 1o return asset and refund lahility

Asat
31 March 2019

As al
31 Mareh 2018

Refund [iabilities
Arising from dizcounts
Arising (rom rights of return

(Tihis space has heen imentionally left blawk)
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Reeoneiling the amount of revenue recopnised in the statemeni of Profit and Loss with the contmcted price

IFor the year ended
31 Mareh 2019

FFor the year ended
31 March 2018

Revenue as per econtracied pricc
Adjustinen(s

Sales etum

Discount

PerTnrimance ohligirtion
Inigrmation uboul the Conpany’'s perfonmance obligations arc summarised belmw

Manulictured goods
The performance obligauon 15 salisfied upon dispateh of e goods from company's warchouse.

226325174

15,12.32,608

22,65.23,174

15,12,32.608

The customer has a right lo return the material to an extent as may be agreed upon with cach customer or within the imits as may be detenmined by the
company. However, since all such sales were made 10 intercompany customers. no snsiances ol sales relurn were abserved during the year

Services

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and payiment 1s genesallv due upon completion of jobwaork servives and dispiteh of goods Jrom the

wirchouse

(This space has been infentionally lefr blani}
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17,

Al

Other income

Finance income

For the year coded
3§ March 2(H9

For the year cnded
3t Mareh 2018

[nerest income on
Bank deposits
Others
Income Lax refimd
Unmvmding of discount an security deposil paid

Other income

31716
3.30,65.099

87,506

72.576
2.94.32.564
358802

3.31.84,321

2.98,84.032

For the vear ended
31 Murch 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Dividend mcame on non-curreni investments

air value gaim/(loss) on financial instrament al fur value through prolitand Toss
Provision for doubtful debis written back

Miscellaneous income

Total other income {a+b)

. Cost of raw materials and componenis consumcd

- 1.300
4338 -
747230 205436
10.89,283 -
18,76,888 2,06.736
3,50,61,209 3009768

¥For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Raw materials consumcid
tnventory m the beginning ol the year
Add - purchases during the year

Less wiventory atthe end of the vear
Cosl of raw materials and components consumed

Detzils of raw material and components purchased

59.71.42) 19.16.162
13,04.93,858 8.26.64.467
13,64,65,279 8,45,80,629

4.67.385 59,71.421
13,59,97.694 7,86,09,208

For the year endeid
31 March 2119

For the year eniled
31 March 2018

Raw matenal (paper)
Ghue {hot mealt)

S Plaies

Ink

Chemicals

Packing Malerial

Details of elosing inventory
Raw materials
Paper

. Publication cxpenses

10,92,05.733 7.3%9.17.918
56,64,125 34.66.173
8(0.39.546 10.49.074
23.88,649 13.11.983
13,60.600 871,338
3435185 2047979
13,04,93,858 8.26,64.467
4,07.585 5971421
4,67,585 59.71,421

For the year ended
31 March 2019

FFor the yenr ended
31 March 2018

Reyally

Prining charges

Power mnd fuel

Repairs and maintenance - machimery
Consumption of sleres and spares

17,909 3.64.290
1.70.07 486 47.53.790
22.33 067 2751012
7.22.634 10.72.887
1§,30,29% 33.68,100
1.98,11.494 1,25,10,769
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20. Increase in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

{Amount in ¥)

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Inventories al the end of the year
Semi finished goods (refer note 6)
Stores and spares (refer note 6)

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Semi finished goods*
Stores and spares

{Increase)/ decreasc in inventaries

21,183 35,84,504
$8,44,667 40,46,542
88,65,850 76,31,346
315,84.804 31,95.653
40,46,542 43,54.092
76,31,346 75,49,745

(12,34,504) (81,601)

*During the current year, company has written off seini-finished goods of 3,563,621

21. Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Freight and cartage expenses
Business promotion expenses

22. Employee benefits expense

40,48.314 31,72,620
- 2.50,000
40,48,314 34,22.620

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 29)

Staff welfare expenses

23. Depreciation and amortization expense

1,56,88,785 1,67,60.476
12,31,102 12,88,838
6,39,934 8.71,398
4,04,023 5,75,912
1,79,63,844 1,94,96,624

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization ¢f intangible assets

50.28.836 28,97.172
- 85,978
50,28.886 29,83,150
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24, Finunce cost

{Amountin I)

[for the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year cnded
31 March 2018

Interest - others
Inlcrest on sncome 1ax
Bank charges

Lean processing lce

25. Other expenses

71,6890 24.88,05
160,805 .
206,813 158815
2.39.606 2.77.848

78.36,127 29,24,653

For the year ended
31 Marceh 2019

For the year ¢ended
31 March 2018

Qulsource serviees

Rent

Repairs and maintenance - building
Insurance

Travellng and conveyanee
Communication cost

Security charges

Printing und slatienery

Legal and prolessional fee

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 38)

Payment lo avditors (reler details below)
Miscellaneous expenses

Paymenl fo auditer

10680163

96,40.934

30,26.607 27.11.031
15.95.512 13,65.329
4,06.474 371,620
471832 8,%9.984
1.63.263 139618
10.64.013 11.39.192
57,285 4,20, |44
10.98.224 10.94,58)
. 1250000
12.63,636 7.53.308
176,006 4,12.236
2,001,08,015 2,01,96,377

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

As auditor
a)  Andit lees
by Limited review lees
¢} Others

26. Components of Other Comprehensive ineome (OCH
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by euch type of equity 1s shown below

7,00,000 7.00.000
4.50.000 -
1.13636 53,308
12,63.636 7,53,308

Far the year ended
31 March 20(9

fior the year ended
31 March 2018

Re-measermet gains/(Josses) on defined henellt plans
Tax ympuact on re-measuresmenlt gains/losses) on delined benefil plans

29541 312,401
(8,139) (58.572)
21402 1,533,879
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27,

28a.

280,

Earning per share ([2P$)

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated hy dividing the profit for the year attrihutable o equety holders by the weighted average number ol Bquity shares

oulstanding during (he year,

Dituled CPS amounlts arc calculated by dividing the profit for the year attribulable o cquity holders by Ihe welghied average number of equily shares
awslanding doring the year plus the weighled average number of equity shares thal would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential eqenty shares it

equity shares

The iellowing reflects Ihe income and share data used in the basic and diluted EIPS computations

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Profil attnhutable wo equity holders of the company 39791777

Weighted average number ol equity shores used [or computing Earning per Share (Basic & Diluled) 12,000
Basic L-1°~ (absolute value in ) 3316
Diluted PS5 (absolute value in 2} 3316

Income taxes

3.29,37.786
12,600

2,745
2,745

For the year ended
31 March 2012

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Income tax charged to statement of profit and loss

Current income lay charge 1.06,0B,617 84,12,731
MAT credit availed (11.49.200) (10,38,307)
Inconic wax adjustinenl redated 1o earlier year 2162368 1,12,051
Delerred (ax charge 7.10,652 8,317,258
1,23,32,736 83.23,755
Income tax eharged to other comprehensive income

Expenses (benelit) on re-nteasurement gan/(loss) on defined benefit plans 8.13% 58.522
§,130 58,522

Reconcilmtion of lax expense and Lhe accounting protitmultplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2018;

for the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Accounting prolil belorg jax 52124513

4.12,61.541

Acceunting profit before ineome tax 5,21.24,513

4,12,61,541

At India’s slalutory meotne 1ax rale o 27 82% (31 March 2018 27.55%) 1,45.01,040 1.13.67.535

Exempl income under section 801C 140,33,899) {31,84,956)
Mon-deductible expenses for lax purposes.

Income Lax adjustiment related Lo earlier year 21,62.368 1,112,051

Other non-deduclible expenses (2.76.773) 29,135

Al the effective income (ax rate of 23.66% (31 March 2018: 20.17%) _I_.Z.}_.SZ.P@_ N 33,23.75:5_
Income tax cxpense reporled in Lthe Statcment of Prolit and Loss 1,23.32.736 83.23.7535

{TTus space has been intentianaliv feft blani)
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29. Gratity and ether post- conployment benefits plan

The Company has wdefined beneiit gratoity plan. Under the pratunty plan, vvery employee who has completed atleast Tive years ol service gels a grutuily on departure
ol 13 days ol tagt drawn salary for cach completed year of serviee or part thercofl 1n excess ol six months subject (0 2 maximum ol 22,000,600

Statement of Profit & Loss uccount
Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee eost;

(Amount in T)

FFar the vear ended
31 March Z019

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

Currenl service cosl
Past service cost
[nieresi cost on defined obhgation

Amount recognisedd in Other Comprehensive Tneeme:

4,75 085 270218

- 4.34.818
214,849 1,66.162
6,39,934 8,71,398

For the year ended
31 Murch 2019

For the yeur ended
31 March 2018

Acteanal {gains} / losses on ohlipation

Bilance sheet
{hanges in the present value of the defined benefit obligation dre as follows:

(29.541) (2,12,401)

{29,541) (2.,124010)

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the vear ended
3t March 2018

Opemng defined beneht obligation
Lurrent servige cosl

Past suivice cost

[nterest cost

Benelits pard

Actuarial (gains) 7 tosses on obligation
Closing defined benefit abligation

Current Porlion
Non - Current Portion

38,1453 72,9946
125088 270218
F 4.34.818
2,14.849 1.66.362
(3.19.396) (1,43.392)
(39.541) (2.12400)
31.05,548 28,14,551
3,59.915 48,619
27,15,633 27,65,932

Tlhc ceonamic antd demographic issumptions used in defermining gratuity oblipations for the company’s plans are shown helow:

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Far the year ended
31 March 2018

Discount rale
Expected rate of relurn on assets
Expecied rate ol salary increase

Retiraanent age {11 years)
[mployee lurnever:-
Service upto 3 yeurs
Service above 3 years
Mortalily rate

7.65% 0%
N A, NA
[ 6%
60 years a0 vears
%o St
1% 1%
1ALM (2006-08) TALN { 2006-08)
Uimate Ultinale

The esiimates of [uture salary intreases. considered in actuarial valuation, take account of nflabion, senjonty. promotion and other relevanl actors. such as supply and

deriand in the crployment market.

The cxpected contribution Tor nexl annual reporting period is I 382915 {31 March 2018; T48.61%)

Tl impaclt of sensitivity analysis duc to changes in the sijnficant acluarial assumptions on the delined benehi obiigations is given in helow table:

Change in

For tlie year ended  For the vear ended

assumplions 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Impact of changes in diseount rafe
tmpact due (o increase =]y (3360823 (30.62,831)
Impact due to decrense - 1%a R.85.502 26,010,661
Impact of changes in sulary rate
hnpicl due o inereuse vl 3887135 30.64,360
Impaet due to decrease - 1% (13.54.590) (23.95.538)

The sensitivity analysts above has been delenmined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit abligation as a result of reasonable changes in

key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting pesiod.
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30, Leascs

Operating lease: company as lessee

a. The Company has taken premuses for Ractory use under operatimg leise agreawents  The wotal lease rentals tecognized as an cxpense durmg the year under the above
lease agreements aggregates o Rs 3,026,507 (31 March 2618 Rs 2.711.031), There are no resinetions imposed by Ihe lease agreemcents. There are no sub leases.

Further msninum rental payable under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows {Amount in ¥)
As at As al
Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Willim one year 3317291 I0.26.607
Atter one year bul not more than live yoars - 331729

Aldler Dive years
31, Related party disclosure
u) Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties where eonirel exists
Holding Company S Chand And Comnpany Limted

Related parties with whom transactions have laken place during the vear

Fellow subsidiaries Vikas Publishinge House Private Loniled
Safan Digital Educauon Tniuatives Private Limited
New Saraswalti Touse (India) Private Limited
5 Dugital Private Liniled

key Management Personnui Mr EHimanshu Gupla, Director
Mrs Suvita Gupla, Direclor
Mr Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhmuwala, Directer
Mrs Neeria Ihunjhnuwala, Whele sime Director

(s space s beerr mtennonaliv left blank)
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b} Transactions with the related parties

{Amount in T)

TR S — Yeuar ‘Holding Fnh:ll-mv. Key munagement Total
Ended Cempany subsidiarics personnel

Printing charges paid

Vikas Peblishing 1louse Private Limited 31 March 2019 - 1.16,90,866 - 1,16,90.866
31 March 2018 - 47,53,790 - 47,53,79¢

Loan given during the ycar

New Saraswali ouse (India) Private Lnmiled 31 March 2319 - 7.40,00.000 7.00,00.000
31 March 201% L - - -

N S Digital Pvt L1 31 March 2019 - - = -
31 March 2008 - 2,50.00,000 - 2.50,00.000

Neerja Jhunjhnuwala 34 March 2019 - - 9.30.281 9.30.281
31 March 2018 - - - -

Loan repaid during the year

New Saraswali House (India) Private Lomicd 31 March 2019 3,50,00.000 3.50,00.000
31 March 2018 - - - -

Interest income

D S Mgual Private Linited 31 March 201 - 2811758 28.11.758
31 March 2018 - 12.28.29% - 1228208

New Saraswali House {India) Private [ imated 31 March 2019 17.51,101 - 17,351,101
31 March 2918 - - - -

Safari Dgital Céucation nitiatives Private Lumiled 31 March 2019 2,85,02,240 - 28502240
31 Mareh 20138 - 2.82.24 266 2.82.24 266

Remuneration lo direetors

Neerja Jhunjhnusvala® 31 March 2019 - 2762030 27.62.050
31 March 2018 - 36.,00.000 36.,00,000

Sales/ Job Work

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2019 20.31.66,885 - 20.31.66.885

31 March 2018 13.25.44 551 - - 13.25.44,551
New Saraswali louse {India) Private Limited 31 March 2019 - 1.62.84,299 - 1,62 84 299
31 March 2018 - 1.66,96,574 - 166,496,574
Vikas Publishing llouse Private Limited 31 March 2019 - 37.306,582 - 3750382
11 March 2018 - 1,57,45) - 1.57.451
Purchase of paper/consumabies
Vikas Publishing House Private Linited 31 March 2019 - 71.T8,000 - T, 18000
31 Mareh 2018 - 2,02,56,340 - 2,02 56,340
Purchase of fixed assets
Vikas Publishing Uouse Private Limiled 31 Marel 2019 - - - -
31 March 2018 - 31,00.000 - 31.00,000

Corporate Guarantee taken
S Chand And Company Limited

31 March 2019
31 March 2018

3,71.46,069

3,71,46,069

Corporate Guaraniec given
S Chand And Company Linuted

31 March 2019
31 March 2018

9.86.10.992
15,02,57.300

9.86.40,992
15.02.57,300

*Including perguisiles pad during the year for year ended Mareh 31,2019,

(s space has been trentionatly fefi blank)
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¢) Balance outstanding (Amountin T)

Vear Ended Holding Flolllowl Key managemen| Total
Conmpany subsidiaries persoanel

Trade receivahle

S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2019 14,53.42.016 - 45342016
31 March 20118 15,30,04,622 - - 15,30,04 622

New Sargawabt House (India) Privale Limited 31 March 2019 1,79.15.587 B 179.15.387
31 March 2018 1,57.63.274 . 1,57,63,276

Loan and adyances

D S Digital Private Limited 31 March 20104 - 28636054 - 280,306,054
31 March 2018 - 2.61,05471 - 26105471

New Sarasvali Flouse {India) Privawe Limiled 31 March 2014 - 3,53.56,035 - 35356035
31 March 201% - - - -

Salari Digital Education Iniliatives Privaie Linited 31 Mareh 2019 - 28,52 40.869 - 28.52.40,869

- 31 March 2018 - 260096454 - 260096 434

Advance Recoverable

Neer i thunjhnuwala 31 March 2019 - - 9.30.281 9.30.281
31 March 2018 - . , B

Trade payable

Vikas Publishing Housc Private Limited 31 March 2019 - 1.96,36,852 - 1,96,36.852
31 March 2018 - 222,81,975 - 1,22,81,975

Remuneration to dircctors payable

Necrja Jhunjhnowala 31 March 2019 - - 2 -
31 March 2018 - - 3.00.000 3.,00.000

(This space has been ientionull) left blank)
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32. Contingent linbilites (te the extent not pravided for) . {xmaunt in T)
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Corporate Guarantee against cash credst Bwility avinled by Holding company (refer no '’ below ) DRO(GZ

33

34,

35,

36,

37

38

Income tax demand (reler pole B & aoto ¢ below) 7:18,72.055 7.48.72.055
Prondent Fond {refer nate 'd' helow) _ -

e Compary has given grarantee to cen@m banks m respect of eredil Beibty avmbed by lioddng company

Grrantee given to In respect to credil faciliny granted 1o Mtturity date Interest rate 31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2008

HIBTC Bank 8 Chand And Company amited On demand 9 560% 10 10, 1085, ’ 986,44, 492 150257300

During FY 2012-13. ihe Commpuny received demand notice from the income tax autborines reguiring 1o pay addinonal fax of' 39,439,763 {31 March 2018 T 39,039.763) (o
assessment year 2011-12 Demind pertains (o disailowance ol deduction under secthon 8UIC of the Income Tax Act The company has wot paid sny amomm 1owrds this
demand. The matler has been deeided w Company's favour by CLE (Appueals) and 15 curreiily pending with the 1TAT, Vhe ianagement 1s conlident that the mauer sall be
decided in compans's nvour

Punng FY 2014-15, the Company vecerved demand nutzee Irom (e meome (ax awthorsties requeing o pay sddmonal (ax o 3 33,432,292 (31 March 2018: T 35.432.292) for
assessment year 2012-13 Denmand perlains o disaliowance of deduciion mder svetion 8010 of the Income Tax Act The cowpany has not paid any amount tawards this
demaid. The matter has been decided in Company’s favour by CUE CAppenls) and 1s currently pendime wath the TTAT  The management 15 conitdent that the matter will be
decide:l in company’s favour

There are nunierous inferpretive issues relaling te fhe Supreine Canrl (SC) judgeinent dated Fehruary 28, 2018, As aatier of caution, the Company has made provision on a
prospective bases ron the date of SC ovder T he Company will update s provision, on receiving lurthier clanity en the snbject

Dues to Micro, small and medimm ¢nterprises as defined under the MSMED Aci, 2006

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

The principal mnouet and the nterest due thereen (o he shown sepazately) emainniug wnpaid 1o any supplier i ai the cod of
vach uccounting year

-Prneipal mnount due 1o micro and small cnierprises 27,187 -

-hierest diue on above = -

27187 -
The amoeunt of inigrest paid by the Buyer molerms of seetian 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 aleng witlt the aniouns of (be
paviment made (o the supplser bevond the appointed day during cach accounting year. - -
The amount of inierest due and payable for the perod ol delay in making payment (which have been pad bui bevond the
appoimed day duning the year) but withom adding the intesest speeriied under the MSMED Ac 2006, o -
The assomd of finther mnterest remaining due and payable evei in the sneveeding veurs, unlit such date when the interest
dues as abave are ciually pawl o 1he smalt enterprise for (the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expendilure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 - -
Tmpurted aod indigenous raw materials, components and spare parts censumed
Raw Materiuls lmported Indigenously abtained
Percentpe [ %) Amount (3) Percentage (%) Ammounnt (3}

As al 31 March 20i% Uy - 1H0% 13,50.97.694
Asat 31 March 2018 Oy - 10005 786,09 2u8

Disclpsure required nnder Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Inclitded in loans ind advance are certain loans the particulars of which are diselosed below as required by Sce 186(4) of Companics Act 2013

Name ol the loance Rate of Interest/ Securcd/ 31 Mareh 2019 3] March 2018
o Dne Pate unsecured o
Safur Digit Edueation Inihatives Privawe Limited S$81 2 Yems MCLR+ Unseeurcd 28.52.40,8069 26,00,96.454
250 B3PS 3 yews
3§ Digiral Povate Limited SBI 2 Years MCI R - Iinseenred 286,306,051 26105471
350 BPS) 3 years
New Saraswati Llouse {India) Privale Linigd SBI 2 Years MCLR+ Unsceurcd 3,33.50.033 -

250 BPSY 3 years
The lvans have been nislized lor ectimg (heir workng capial requirements.

Segment reporling

lud A% 108 cslablishes siandards for the way that companies teport nilormation about operabng sepments and relited disclosures abouy products aad services and ajor
customers. 1Te Company's operations pre-domiuanily relate o binding gl books The Chizl Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates (he Company s porfonuance and
allucates resvurees based o anelysis of varwous performance indicators pertaming (10 business as a single segment Accordingly, the mnounis appeavvg in e Anancial
statemenis relae o the Compamy's sinple business sepment,

Informiation abaul major custonicrs
Revenue ftom 2 mafor coslomers mpowted 10 2 23935184 mprrepating to 97 9% of Total revenne { Rs 149241125 aggrepating o 98.68% during the vear ended 31 March

2018).

Corporate Soviat Responsibility {CSR)

3] March 2019 31 March 2018

a) Gross amount equired 1o he spent by the Comnpany dunng the year 16.75.732 2223375
B) Amount speat duning the year - 12.50.000
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39 Amalgamation Scheme Infnrmation

40

=

The Holding Company, 5 Chand ad Company Lomted bad filed Drall Composite Scheme of Arangesent un Janwars 9. 2018, aimongst Blachic & Sons {Caleutta)
Privale imited, Nirja Publishers and Printers Private Limsted, DS Digital Private Linnted  Safan Digital Hducaten Inthatives Private Lamited and $ Chand and
Company |muted (Company) and ther respective sharcholders and crecitors {Composite Scheme) with BSE Limited (BSE and Matonal Swock Fxchange of India
Litniled ("MSE'} under Regulation 37 of the SI:B1 {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) and Crreular ne CPDILZ/CIRZO1 2721 dated Mach 10, 2017
("S1:B1 Circular), The § Chand and Company Limited shall file the Scheme with National Cowmpany Law Toibunal {NCL1), post approval (rom BSE and NSF

Financial Instruments:- Financial rigk management objectives and policies

The Company’s prncipal financral habiliues, comprises loans and borrowings, Irade and other pavables The main purpese of these Bnancial liabilities ts 1o Minance the
Conpany's operanens. The Company s prineipal finaneial assels melude ivesunents in eqoiiy shures aind government securitics, advances 1o welated panty, trade and
other receivables, sccurity deposils. cash and shori-term deposils that dexive directly [rom ils operations

The Company is expusud to markel risk, credit risk and hquidity risk. Tbe Conpany’s senior management oversees the management ul” these risks and advises on
financral visks and the appropoate financial risk governance ramework for the Company, The Board provides assurance lo the sharcholders (hat the Cemnpany’s
lnancial risk activilics are poverned by appropriate pohietes and proceduses and thal financiai risks are identitied. measured and managed in avcordance with the
Company's policies and risk objectives  The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policics for managing cach of these risks. wlich arc summarised helow.

. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the ts value of fiure cash Nows w7 financial instrument will fluctvate becavse vf chanyes 1 marken prices

Markel risk comprises three tvpes ol risk-

) Inlerest rate risk,

Iy} currency sk and ether pnee visk, sueh as cquity prce nisk and

C.) cominodily risk.

Finaneinl msirunents affected by markel risk inctude foans and borrnwings. investinenis, deposits, advances and denvasive linancial instruments,

The sensiivaly analvsis i the (llowing secetions relate o the position as a 51 Margh 2019 and 31 March 2011 8,
¥ B L B

The sensmivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debl, the rati of floaunyg o Nxed mierest rates of The debt and dervatives and the
proporiton ol finanvial iasiruments in foreign currencies are all constant i place at 31 March 2019,

The analyses cxclude the impael of mevements in market variables on: the enmying values of gratutly and other posi-ratirement obligations: provisions, ‘| he sewsitivily
of the relevant profit or loss item is the elfeel of the assumed changes in respeclive market risks.

Interesi rate risl.

Interest cate risk is the risk thar the fair value or fiture cash lows ol a linancial instrument will Muctugie hecause of changes in market interest ates The Company's
cxposure 10 Lhe risk of changes m market mmterest rates relases primarily (o the Company’s long-term dzbl obligations with Nxed inlerest rates. The following 1able
demonstrales [he sensilivity Lo a reasenabty possible change ininterest rates With all other variables held copstani. the Company’s prafit hefdre tax is afeeted Through
the impact on floaling raie borrowings, as follows,

Increasc/deerease Effeet om profit
in basis points before tay
31 March 201%
Borrowings in I 10.5% 36.437
-0 5%, (30,437)
31 March 2018
Borrowings in 10.5% 2,613,196
-3 Sy {2,61.196)

Forcign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fais value or future cash {lows of an exposure will flucluate because ol changes in forcign exchange rates The Company's
exposure to 1he rish ol changes in foreign exchange rakes relates primarily to the Company s operating aclivitics {when revenue or expense is denonunated in a foresgn
curreney). The Company does not have any foreign corrency exposure as on the reporling date other than the company’s funciional currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meel its ablipations under a financial nstruntent or customer contract, leading iu a financial loss, The Compiy 1s not
exposcd to any significanl ¢redit risk [ram 115 aperating achivities {pumarily irade recevables?, mcluding deposits with banks and financial institutuns, [oreign
exchange iransactions and other Bnancial instroments, Fhe ageing analvsis of trade receivalles {net) as of e reporing date is as follows.

Age Bracket Current 0-180¢ days past doe) [B1-365 davs past due|366-730 days past due More than 730 days Total
As a3l March 2019 580,01 239 50.,28.304 11,27 477 - - 6,41,57,020
Asat 3l March 20138 14,05.79.296 1.42.38,367 2 - - 16.80.20.648
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C. Linuidity rish
Laquiddity 135k s the mish that the Company will cngonrier ditticulty womeeting the obBantitns associated witly s Bl Tnbilites thit are seuled by delvermp cash o mioihe
financral asser The Campiny’s wbjective is 1o mamte i balines between contmaly of funding and flexibiliny through the use of bank overdeafts and bank loans The Conapuem
approach to managing liguidity 16 ensume. as G as possible, tat it wall have sulTicient ignidis 10 mest s liabitity when they ave due. eoder both normal and siressed candm s,

wathaut enrmng weaceeptable [osses or rishing damage o the Company s seputation. The Company closels momtors s hepadits position and deplovs 5 obast caslh manamemen

systern The Compony manages Lquidity rigk by osntamng adequate sesceves, bormoswmg habnhiies, by contmunonsly ninntoning lorecast mub acinal casl lows, prodile of financal
assels and lialadigies 10 i adequate sources of Dnancng mehiding Tosns from Banks a1 qo optimsed cust Vhe able belose provides the deranls repanding contictiad

matusines of Dnanct! liobihues.

Asan Asal
31 Marcl 2019 J1 Murch 2018

On Demand
- Borrowmgs - 406,34, 207

- 4,26,39,207

Less than | year

- Trade pavables 5.43.39.687 6.1.1.68.603
- cher Onancial habiluies G7.73.932 63,53575
6,53,33.619 6.78,11.976
Morce than | year
- Borrownigs RSN TR
40,84.981 70340415
41 Cupital nranagement

For the purpost of the Company’s capiial manageinent. capial includes 1sued equiry capiiad and alf other equity reserves ativibutable te the cquity holders ol the Company, The
pimary objective of the Company’s capual management 15 10 mribvnise the sharcholder vadue. The Company seeks 10 st s Tadance between the bigher relums tha migd be
possible with higher levels of borrovangs ind the advamages aud sceurilty alforded by a sound capital posinen The prminy ebjective al the compuny's capital wanageiment i (o
maxunise the sharcholder value

The Company monilors eapital usimg u gearing oo, winch s net debe divided by total capital plus net debt. The Compiny s policy 15 W heep the peaving ratio berseen 3% and
12%4. The Conmpany megsares undenlying net debi as toml labilites. comprising inlerest bearing loans and botrawmgs, excluding any dues w subsidianes or group companics less
crsh and cash equivalents. For the pumpose of capital management. wial capital mciudes 1ssued equiry equity capital, shene premmum aid uil ethet 1eserves atributable 1o the ¢y
holders of the Company, ns applicable

Compiny’s adjusied net debi 1o equuy ratio ws g1 31 Mareh 201908 as Tollow: {nountin 3|
: ; sl Asat

it ) 31 Alurch 2019 31 Alarch 2018
Borowwigs {including cwrrent natunnes} 128732 5.26.30.007
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (5.89.77.051) 130.66,333)
Adjusted Netdebt {A) {5.16,8%,727} 4,73,.72,654
Equity 75.52.98.305 71.84.85.120
Totol equiry (1) 75,82.98,305 71,84,83,120
Totul equity and uet deby (C = (A+13)] ML66,08,578 16,60,57,780
Genring Ratio {A/C) (.00% 61

In order 10 achieve this overall gbjective, the Compimy’s copiral numagement, antengst athier hings, gims o ensure 1hat 1 mects tinanesal covenants alliched 10 e interest-beanny
loans and barrowings that deline ¢ipital smuciure vequirements. Bicaches inmeeting the linancial covenants would pevigt (he bank 10 immedaely call loans awd horrowsups
There hiave begnno breaches uthe financinl covenants of any interest-bearing lonas and borrowmg in thie currewt penad.

No changes were made u the abjechives. policies or processes tor managing capital during the years ended 31 Muech 2019 and 31 March 2018

42 Fair value of finoncial ussets und Liabilities

Set oul below, 15 0 comparison by class of the canying amounts und faw value of the company’s 1i - menls mstumens. other shan those with carrying amounis Mar sre 1easonali
npproxinlions of i vajues:

31 March 2019 ! 31 March 2018
FVTPL Amortized cost FYTOC! FVTPL Amortized cost FVTOCH
Assets
Non corcent financinl agsels
- Investnents RS RN [ . 113070 20,6575 165
- Louns - T U602 - = -

< Other Fnancind assers = 5 - - 939 -

Cnrrent financinl assels

- Trade weeeivalles - 6,41.37.020 - - 16.80.20.648

- Loans 0 986,317 - - 04,129 -
- Cash and vash equivalents - 5.89,77.031 - - 30,066,553 -
- Other finuncial assels - 70,954 - - G8.40.318 -
Liabilitics

Nan Currert Financial liabilities
- Barmowings 3084981 B ETRTIEIES

Current finunciul liabilitics

- Borrowmgs - - - . 4.26.39.207
= Trude payables - 58559687 - . 614,085,003
« Other Tiwancial liabilics . 6773932 - - 63 33377
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The following assuuiptions/ methods weee used 19 cstimgie the fair values:
'
i} The fair values of irnde recervables. eash and cash equivalents. other current financial assets, made payable and other cnrent financial Tiabililies are considered 1o be sanie as their
i} Fair value of qunted financial instruntents is based on queicd marker price al the reporting date.
i1ty The carrying amount of ather items cavied al amortized cost are reasonable approximation of their fair value.
iv.) The fair value of the financial asseis and liahilitics is imeluded at the amount at which the instrwnent coutd be zxehanged in a curent iransaction between willing partics, other dan
in a forced or liquidation sale. The Tair vatues of the quoted notes and bonds are based on price quelations af the reporting dale.

43 Fair value hierarchy
All fuancial instroents for which fair value is vecapuised ov disclosed ave categorised within the Fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level inpui i is
significant (o the fair value weaserencir as a whole,
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in astive markets for identical assets o linbilities.
Leve! 2: valuation techoiques for which the lowest level iput that has a significant effect on the fain value measwemet ave observable, either divectly or indivectly.
Level 3' valuation wechnigues for which tlke lowest level input which las a signilicont effect on the fur valoe measurement is not based on observable macker dala.

The followig 1able provides e [3iv value measuremem hiecarehy of the Group's assets and Labilities.

Quantilative disclosures fair value weasurement hievarchy for asscls as &l 31 Marel 2019:

Ipir value mensurement using

Quoted prices in Signifieant Significant
aclive markels observable inputs  unohservable inpuis
{Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Agsets measured at fuir value:
Quoted equily shares 1.83.623 - -

Quantitative disclosures foiv value measurement hicraiehy for assets as a1 31 March 2018

Fair viilue mensurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
nctive martkets observable inpuls  unobservable imnuds
{Leval 1) {level ) {Lcvel 3)
Assets measured ot fair value:
Quoted cyyuity shares 143,270 - -
The accempanying notes are an mtegral part of the financial stafements.
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